
NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
 

NEWBURYPORT, MASSACHUSETTS 
 
 
 
 

School Committee Business Meeting 
 
 

Tuesday, April 25, 2023 
 

6:30PM 
 
 

 
SC Packet Checklist: SC Business Meeting Agenda April 25, 2023 
 SC Business Meeting Agenda Notes April 25, 2023 
 SC Business Meeting Minutes – 4/3/2023 
 SC Business Meeting Minutes – 4/11/2023 
 Presentation - Proposed FY24 Budget 
 Proposed FY24 NPS Budget 
 Budget Planning Process Policy (DBD) 
 2023-2024 School Committee Meeting Schedule DRAFT 
 School Committee Meetings Policy (BE) 
 New Account – James Stehlin Donations 
 Public Gifts to the Schools Policy (KCD) 
 
 



Newburyport Public Schools 
Newburyport, MA 

 

School Committee Business Meeting 
Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

 

6:30 PM, Library, Newburyport High School, 241 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 
 

The Mission of the Newburyport Public Schools, the port where tradition and innovation converge, is to ensure each student 
achieves intellectual and personal excellence and is equipped for life experiences through a system distinguished by students, staff, 
and community who: - practice kindness and perseverance - celebrate each unique individual - value creativity; experiential, 
rigorous educational opportunities; scholarly pursuits; and life-long learning - provide the nurturing environments for emotional, 
social, and physical growth - understand and embrace their role as global citizens. 
 
Please note: The listing of matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all 
items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 
The meeting will be televised locally live on Comcast Channel 9 & streamed via https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/. 
 
Business Meeting Agenda: 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comment 
 
3. Staff Recognitions 

 
***   short recess (2-3 minutes)   *** 

 
4. *Consent Agenda (Warrants and Minutes of 4/3/2023 and 4/11/2023) – possible Vote 
 
5. Student Representative report 
 
6. *2023-2024 NPS Budget – possible Vote 
 
7. 2023-2024 School Committee Meeting Schedule DRAFT – 1st read 
 
8. Subcommittee Updates 

a. Finance Subcommittee – Brian Callahan 
− *District seeks approval to create an account for the NHS Athletic Dept. to be used for 

donations in memory of James T. Stehlin, a longtime athletic director and football 
coach at NHS. -  possible Vote 

 
b. Policy Subcommittee – Juliet Walker 

 
9. Superintendent’s Report 
 
10. New Business 
 
 
 
*Possible Vote 
 
 
Adjournment 

**The School Committee reserves the right to call executive session, as provided under Chapter 30A, Section 21(a)(2), of the General 
Laws to discuss strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations, collective bargaining and/or potential litigation.  

https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/


Newburyport School Committee 
Meeting Agenda Notes 

 
Tuesday, April 25, 2023 

6:30PM @ Library, Newburyport High School, 241 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 
 
 

AGENDA NOTES 
 

The listing of matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.  The 
meeting will be televised locally live on Comcast Channel 9 or stream via https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/.  
 
 
Business Meeting Agenda: 
3. Staff Recognitions: 

 The following five crossing guards will be recognized for their hard work, dedication 
and commitment to the safety of all Newburyport children/families as they travel to 
and from school each day:  Janet Crump, Frank Crump, Diane Learned, Judith Nelson 
and Robin Turner. 

 
4. *Consent Agenda (Warrants and Minutes of 4/3/2023 and 4/11/2023) – possible Vote 
 
6. *2023-2024 NPS Budget    -  possible Vote  
  Superintendent Sean Gallagher and Business Manager Phil Littlehale will present the 

FY24 NPS Budget in accordance with Policy DBD – Budget Planning Process. (see 
attached) 

 
7. 2023-2024 School Committee Meeting Schedule DRAFT – 1st read 

Vice Chair Sarah Hall will review next year’s School Committee meeting schedule, 
created using guidelines outlined in Policy BE – School Committee Meetings. (attached) 

 
8. Subcommittee Updates 

a. Finance Subcommittee – Brian Callahan 
− *District seeks approval to create a separate account for the NHS Athletic Dept. to 

be used for donations received in memory of James T. Stehlin, a longtime athletic 
director and football coach at NHS. This is in accordance of Policy KCD – Public 
Gifts to the Schools.  -  possible Vote 

b. Policy Subcommittee – Juliet Walker 
 
9. Superintendent’s Report:  Superintendent Gallagher will provide an update regarding the 

Superintendent’s Advisory Council (SAC), Bresnahan Assistant Principal position, 
Technology Cohort training update, and professional development work with XR Terra 
regarding artificial intelligence, virtual reality and mixed reality. 

 
10. New Business 
 
 
FYI: Upcoming Dates: 

 Bresnahan School Council meeting:  Monday, April 24 @ 8:10AM via Zoom 
 Nock School Council meeting: Tuesday, April 25 @ 8:15AM via Zoom 
 School Committee Special Business Meeting:  Thursday, April 27 @6:30PM 
 School Committee Business Meeting:  Monday, May 1 @6:30PM 
  

 
 

*Possible Vote 

https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/


1 | P a g e  
 

NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING & BUSINESS MEETING  

Senior/Community Center, 331 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 
Monday, April 3, 2023 

 
PUBLIC HEARING - FY24 BUDGET 

 
Present: Mayor Sean Reardon, Sarah Hall, Bruce Menin, Steve Cole, Juliet Walker, 

Breanna Higgins, and Brian Callahan  
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
Mayor Sean Reardon called the School Committee Public Hearing - FY24 Budget Meeting of 
the Newburyport School Committee to order at 6:30 PM.  Roll call found all members present. 
 
FY24 BUDGET PRESENTATION: 
Superintendent Sean Gallagher presented the proposed NPS FY24 budget, beginning with an 
explanation of the new investments, followed by a brief overview of the budget book and the 
revenue table with projected source of funds.  Business Manager Phil Littlehale joined 
Superintendent Gallagher to review each section of the proposed FY24 Budget book, answer 
questions, as well as to provide a brief grants overview. 

• Superintendent Gallagher will provide members with the presentation from the recent 
NSSRT Legislative meeting concerning Special Education increases. 

• Phil Littlehale will check the Transportation totals on pages 24, 27 and 28. 
• Brian Callahan would like a breakdown of the Safety / Uniform expense line on page 24. 
• For the next meeting Superintendent Gallagher will clarify which reading supports are for 

special education versus non-special education. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
There was no Public Comment at this time. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT OF PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING: 
Motion: 
On a motion by Steve Cole and seconded by Sean Reardon it was 

VOTED: To adjourn the Public Budget Hearing Meeting at 7:48 PM. 
Motion Passed Unanimously  
 
 
 
 
      ** regular business meeting – next page **  



2 | P a g e  
 

NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE BUSINESS MEETING 
Monday, April 3, 2023 

 
Present: Mayor Sean Reardon, Sarah Hall, Bruce Menin, Steve Cole, Juliet Walker, 

Breanna Higgins, and Brian Callahan 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Sean Reardon called the School Committee Business Meeting of the Newburyport 
School Committee to order at 7:49 PM. Roll call found all members present. 
 
At this time Vice-Chairman Sarah Hall assumed the chairmanship of the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Martin Desch, 3 Knights Lane, spoke on behalf of the Newburyport Pioneer League board. He 
asked the School Committee to support the league’s request for a waiver to the start/end hours 
for Eaton Field on Sundays.  NPS field use starts at 12:00 on Sundays, but others in the area 
start at 8:00AM. The league’s weekday schedules are full; therefore, the league needs to play 
on weekends (Sunday). 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
Warrants: 
Motion: 
On a motion by Brian Callahan and seconded by Bruce Menin it was  
 VOTED: To approve, receive and forward to the City Auditor for payment the  
   following warrants: 
   Warrant 8082   $271,656.85 
 
Motion Passed Unanimously 
 
Minutes: 
Motion: 
On a motion by Bruce Menin and seconded by Brian Callahan it was 
 VOTED: to approve, receive and file the School Committee Business meeting 
   minutes of March 20, 2023. 
Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon abstained 
 
 
 
REQUEST TO WAIVE WEEKEND FIELD USE HOURS: 
Brian Callahan explained that the Pioneer League submitted a request to use Eaton Field on the 
weekends during hours that conflict with those hours stated in the Community Use of School 
Facilities policy (FG).  Brian stated the current policy is antiquated and the rule is not being 
applied consistently. 



3 | P a g e  
 

Motion: 
On a motion by Brian Callahan and seconded by Bruce Menin, waive the Sunday time 
restrictions and allow the hours to be like Saturday hours: 9:00AM – 7:00PM. 
Motion Passed 
Steve Cole voted no 
 
 
SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES: 
Finance: 
Brian Callahan said they will meet next Thursday (April 13). 
 
Policy: 
Juliet Walker had nothing new to report. 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT: 
Superintendent Gallagher provided a brief update of the recent IFTAR event and upcoming 
MCAS dates. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
• Juliet Walker explained that using Free & Reduced Lunch data to gauge “need” appears to 

be helpful in capturing the right people who need relief.  This information can be used to 
make suggestions to the transportation policy when it comes up for review. 

• Sarah Hall stated that a draft of the 2023-2024 school committee meeting schedule will be 
reviewed at the next meeting on Tuesday, April 25.  The suggested date for the summer 
retreat will be Monday, August 7th, 4-8PM. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
On a motion by Mayor Sean Reardon and seconded by Brian Callahan it was 
 VOTED: To adjourn the Business Meeting of the Newburyport School Committee  
   At 8:25 PM. 
Motion Passed Unanimously 
 



1 

NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE SPECIAL BUSINESS MEETING 
Library @ High School, 241 Street, Newburyport, MA, 01950 

Tuesday, April 11, 2023 
 
 
Present: Mayor Sean Reardon, Sarah Hall, Bruce Menin, Brian Callahan, and 

Steve Cole 
   

Absent: Juliet Walker and Breanna Higgins 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Sean Reardon called the Special Business Meeting of the Newburyport School Committee to 
order at 6:00 PM.  Roll call found all members present except Breanna Higgins and Juliet Walker. 
 
 
Review and discussion of Legal Opinion: 
The School Committee discussed a legal opinion concerning the oversight authority of Newburyport 
City Council for the Newburyport School Committee and Newburyport Public Schools that was 
prepared by Murphy, Lamere & Murphy. 
 
Discussions began with a brief background leading up to the request for a legal opinion. It was stated 
that the attorneys initially provided an informal interpretation via email, then last week provided a full 
response that outlined the roles of each organization. 
 
Various members stated the opinion was well written, straightforward, and backs their belief that the 
City had no purview over the schools. 
 
Mayor Sean Reardon stated it is his hope that the city and school organizations find a way to work 
together. 
 
Motion: 
On a motion by Brian Callahan and seconded by Bruce Menin it was 

VOTED: to waive the attorney-client privilege for the legal opinion and to be made public. 
 
Motion passed 
Breanna Higgins and Juliet Walker absent 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Motion: 
On a motion by Bruce Menin and seconded by Brian Callahan it was 

 VOTED: to adjourn the Business meeting of the Newburyport School Committee at 6:07PM. 
 
Motion Passed 
Breanna Higgins and Juliet Walker absent 
 

















































































































1st read – April 25, 2023 
School Committee Meeting Schedule 

2023 - 2024 
Voted/Approved  - ________ 

NOTES: 
School Committee Meetings are held on the 1st and 3rd Mondays of each month at 6:30 PM at the Senior/Community Center; (By city 
Charter, SC meetings shall not meet on the same day as a regular City Council meeting, except in case of an emergency.) 
*Exceptions to the rule:  *Tuesday, September 5 due to Labor Day; *Tuesday, November 14 - Joint FY24 Budget meeting;  *Tuesday, January 2 
due to New Year’s holiday, Tuesday, January 16 due to MLK holiday, *Tuesday, February 27 and Tuesday, and April 23  due to school vacation 
weeks, and not to  conflict with City Council meetings. 
 

DATE TIME INFO  DATE TIME INFO 
 

August 7, 2023 
 

4:00 PM -  
8:00 PM 

 
Summer Retreat 

NHS Library 

 

Tuesday, January 2, 2024 6:30 PM 

Inauguration? 

Business/Organizational 
Meeting 

August 21, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  Tuesday, January 16, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

Tuesday, Sept. 5, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  February 5, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

September 18, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  Tuesday, February 27, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

October 2, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  
March 4, 2024 
Public FY24 Preliminary Budget 

Presentations 
6:30 PM Business Meeting 

October 16, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  March 18, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

November 6, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  April 1, 2024 6:30 PM Public Hearing on Budget 
Business Meeting 

*Tuesday, Nov. 14, 2023 

                6:30 PM 

City Council & School Committee 
Joint Meeting  
FY24 Budget 

 Tuesday, April 23, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

November 20, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  May 6, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

December 4, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  May 20, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

December 18, 2023 6:30 PM Business Meeting  June 3, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

  June 17, 2024 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

** Meeting dates, times and/or locations may be changed, added or deleted throughout the year. 



SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS       
Section B: School Committee Governance and Operations File: BE 

The School Committee will transact all business at official meetings of the Committee.  These may be either regular or special 
meetings, defined as follows:  

1.  Regular meeting:  the usual official legal action meeting, held regularly 
2.  Special meeting:  an official legal action meeting called between scheduled regular meetings to consider specific topics 

Every meeting of the School Committee, regular or special, will be open to the public unless an executive session is held in 
accordance with state law. 

Meetings  

a) The School Committee will meet on the first Monday of each month from August through June. The Committee will meet 
on the third Monday of the month, except in the month of July.  The Committee shall set a standard start time and location 
for these meetings during the first meeting of each new year. The Committee may, by a majority vote, and for good reason, 
change the date, place or time of the regular meeting. 

b) Special meetings will be scheduled when called by the Chairperson and/or their designee, requested by two or more 
members, or collectively agreed upon by a majority of the committee as the result of a discussion during a regular meeting or 
an executive session. The need for timeliness for such a meeting will be recognized when it’s scheduled. The notice of the 
special meeting shall state the reason for the meeting and shall be transmitted to each member and to the City Clerk at least 
two (2) business days, excluding weekends and holidays, prior to the time of the meeting. 

c) The Committee may, by a majority vote of those present, there being a quorum, adjourn any meeting to another date and 
time, and such meeting shall be deemed a continuation of the present meeting. 

d) The Committee may, by a majority vote, conduct a public hearing to ascertain public opinion on a subject that is before the 
Committee and shall, in any case, conduct a public hearing on the school budget in accordance with the law.  The Committee 
shall set the date, time, and place of such public hearing and shall establish rules for the conduct of such hearing. 

e) The Committee may meet from time to time for the purpose of receiving information and discussing matters pertaining to 
the educational program of the schools. Any such session shall be posted in the office of the City Clerk at least two (2) 
business days, excluding weekends and holidays, prior to the time of the meeting. 

g) Any duly-called meeting of the Committee may, for good and sufficient reason, be canceled or postponed by the 
Chairperson or the Vice-Chairperson. When the Chairperson or the Vice-Chairperson cancels or postpones a meeting, he/she 
shall inform the Superintendent, whose responsibility it shall be to notify the members. 
 
Sources:  MASC  

  LEGAL REFS.:  M.G.L. 30A:18-25  
  CROSS REFS.:  BEC, Executive Sessions;  BEDA, Notification of School Committee Meetings 
  Newburyport School Committee Policy Manual 

Version Control 
Action Date 
First Reading 7/22/2016 

Second Reading 9/6/2016 

Adopted 9/6/2016 

Revised 8/3/2020 

 

http://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/DocViewer.jsp?docid=37&z2collection=master
http://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/DocViewer.jsp?docid=38&z2collection=master


James T. Stehlin
July 26, 1932 - April 12, 2023

Newburyport - James Thomas Stehlin, 90, passed away peacefully on April 12, 2023, with his loving family by
his side. His family would like to thank the many friends and former players who visited and li�ed his spirits
so significantly over the past few weeks.
Jim "Coach" Stehlin was born in Allentown, PA on July 26, 1932. He attended Georgetown University on a
football scholarship until their program closed. Jim then became the starting quarterback at Brandeis
University, where he was selected as an All-American and later inducted into the Hall Of Fame. He also
proudly served his country as a member of the Army during the Korean War.
Jim was the athletic director and football coach at Newburyport High School for 35 years. His camps and
clinics were attended by coaches and players from around the country, and his winning coaching record
inspired excitement and support from all of Port's fans -- many of whom gathered a�er games in the
Stehlin's large living room, just around the corner from the football field. But it was Jim's positive and
paternal influence on the boys and men of the greater Newburyport community that is even more
legendary, and something in which he took great pride. In 2015, the NHS football stadium filled once again
to celebrate the dedication of "James T. Stehlin Field", an honor which was featured on Boston Sports TV and
deeply meaningful to Jim.
Jim is survived by his loving and devoted wife of 63 years, Beverly, and his 3 children Kevin (Sheila), Kelley
Conley (Brian) and Kara Mamakos (the late Mike Mamakos). He is also survived by 8 grandchildren, to whom
he was "Poppy": Devin, Brianna, Evan (Harriet), Derek (Franco), Kelsey, Carly, James and Elianna; and 3
great-grandchildren. All will remember him as an unconditional supporter, an engaging storyteller, and a
good-natured jokester.
Jim's family would like to thank the wonderful sta� at High Pointe Hospice House in Haverhill.
Family and friends are invited to Jim's Funeral Mass at 10:30 A.M. on Saturday April 15, 2023 at Immaculate
Conception Church. Burial will be private at a later date. All are invited to join his family for a Celebration of
Coach's Life at the Mission Oak Grill 26 Green St. Newburyport following Mass. The Twomey, LeBlanc, &
Conte Funeral Home 193 High St. is assisting with Mr. Stehlin's funeral arrangements.
In lieu of flowers, please consider a donation to: Newburyport Athletic Association, make checks payable to
Newburyport High Athletics, please put in notes James Stehlin and mail to NHS 241 High St. Newburyport,
MA 01950 or the Make a Wish Foundation, online at wish.org
To o�er online condolences please visit www.tlcfuneralhome.com

http://www.tlcfuneralhome.com/


PUBLIC GIFTS TO THE SCHOOLS     
Section K: Community Relations File: KCD 

 

The Superintendent will have authority to accept gifts and offers of equipment or money from outside 
groups with longstanding affiliations with the district (eg. NEF, PTO, Alumni Association) for the schools 
when the gift is of educational value.   

 

Extensive advertising, promotion or naming opportunities may be subject to school committee approval.  

 

Gifts that would involve changes in school plants (such as a new cafeteria) or sites (such as a modified 
playground) will be subject to School Committee approval. The Superintendent will inform the School 
Committee, via the Finance Subcommittee, of gifts received that exceed $2500. 

 

Gifts will automatically become the property of the school system. Any gift of cash, whether or not 
intended by the donor for a specific purpose, will be handled as a separate account and expended at the 
discretion of the Superintendent, as provided by law. The Superintendent will honor the wishes of the 
donor as much as possible and notify the donor if the money is needed for a different purpose. 

 

The Superintendent has authority to accept anonymous donations. In the event that the Superintendent 
is uncertain about the desirability of accepting an anonymous gift, they will consult with the school 
committee. Anonymous donations will be recorded publicly as “Anonymous.” 

 

The Committee directs the Superintendent to assure that an appropriate expression of thanks is given to 
all donors. 

 

Version Control 

 
Action Date 

First Reading 10/16/2017 

Second Reading 11/6/2017 

Adopted 11/6/2017 

Revised First Reading 12/21/2020 

Second/Adopted 5/17/2021 

 


	4-25-2023 SC cover sheet
	4-25-2023 agenda (1)
	4-25-2023 SC agenda notes (2)
	Sch Com April 3 2023 minutes
	Special SC Meeting April 11 2023 minutes
	Legal Opinion Letter April 11th meeting
	Presentation_Proposed FY24 Budget April 20
	Proposed FY24 Budget April 20
	DBD-BUDGET PLANNING PROCESS
	SC Meeting Schedule 2023-2024 draft 1
	BE-SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS August 2020
	SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS

	James Stehlin _ Obituary _ The Daily News of Newburyport
	KCD-PUBLIC GIFTS TO THE SCHOOLS REV May 2021
	PUBLIC GIFTS TO THE SCHOOLS


